




City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 9, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief, Administration 
      Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief, Operations 
 
 Invocation was given by Dr. Scott Guffin, Liberty Park Baptist Church.  Joseph 
Harper, Boy Scout Troop 96, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• Steve Ammons stated that he is running for Jefferson County Tax Collector and 
asked for support in the November general election. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• None. 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 2 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the annual Chamber of Commerce “I Love America 
Day” celebration Wednesday, July 2, 2014 beginning with free swimming, 
children’s activities and a movie. 

• Mr. Henley stated that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has selected Sheila 
Phillips as the new Superintendent of Education. 

• The Mayor congratulated Mr. Henley’s group for winning the annual Wing Ding 
which was held at the City Center last Saturday.  He stated that the event was well 
attended and grows every year.  Proceeds went to helping fight Cystic Fibrosis. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of May 28, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of May 

28, 2014 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. 
Pierce and second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – abstained    motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4596 
 
Resolution Number 4596 – A Resolution Authorizing The Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And 
Vestavia Hills Investment Partners, LLC   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4596 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the City Manager is away at a conference but left written 
commentary on each request.  He stated that he would read and explain those comments.  
He stated that this Resolution is an agreement between the City and GBT for construction 
of a retail center.  He explained the terms of the agreement. 
 
 Heyward Hosch, Maynard Cooper and Gale representing the City, was present to 
discuss the specifics of the agreement. 
 
 Thom Hickman, GBT Investments, was also present to answer any questions 
concerning the development. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 3 
 

 Discussion ensued concerning securities regarding default, the status of the 
project, target closing dates, etc. 
 
 Mr. Hosch and Mr. Hickman answered the questions and indicated that their 
project engineers are meeting with City Staff in the morning to discuss the particulars of 
the building setbacks, parking, etc. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4597 
 
Resolution Number 4597 – Vacation Of Easement – Columbia Cottage; Lots 9 Thru 

13, Block 1 And Lots 26-30, Block 1, Survey Of Glass’s 3rd Addition 
To New Merkle; Columbia Cottage-Mountain Brook LLC, Owner  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4597 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this Resolution is to vacate an old easement that 
traverses the Columbia Cottage development underneath the existing building.  This will 
allow the vacation of the easement so the property can be resurveyed without the 
easement within the building.  All utilities, as well as the City Engineer, have signed 
releases for the vacation. 
 
 George Dykes, Columbia Cottage, was present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4600 
 
Resolution Number 4600 -  A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With Jefferson County For Community 
Development Block Grant Program Cooperation  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4600 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this agreement allows the City to apply for various 
block grants as the opportunity arises. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Number 4599 was by Mr. Ammons.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4599 
 
Resolution Number 4599 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 

Purchase Additional Technology Equipment And Proceed With 
Construction Of A Pedestrian Circulation Plan For The Vestavia Hills 
Library In The Forest With The Balance Of A $300,000 Grant From 
The Public School And College Authority (PSCA)  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4599 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor explained that the Library had been awarded a $300,000 grant a 
couple of years ago and the Council had approved expenditures up to $121,000.  This 
Resolution will allow the expenditure of the remaining funds for a proposed handicap 
accessible ramp or, if no time permits before time lapses on the grant, the purchase of 
new computers for use in the library. 
 
 Ms. Tucker was present in regard to the request.  She gave a brief background on 
the awarding of the grant and the unexpected expiration of the funds.  She indicated that 
they are in the process of requesting an extension in the deadline to expend the funds and 
hope to have the designs and construction completed on the ramp prior to losing the 
funds.  If not, they wish to purchase computers with the remaining funds since the 
computers are three years old and out of warranty. 
 
 Mr. Pierce pointed out that the Resolution was correct, however, the agenda stated 
that the grant was only $300.  Mr. Boone advised there should be an amendment.  The 
Mayor opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend to clarify that the amount of grant is $300,000 was by 

Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on June 
23, 2014 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2501 – Conditional Use Approval – 709 Vestavia Lake 
Drive; Conditional Use Approval For The Purpose Of Raising And/Or 
Harvesting Domestic Hens With Restrictions; Andy And Larue Lockhart  (public 
hearing) 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 9, 2014, 

Page 6 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:23 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





























































Resolution Number 4602 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4602 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 

2013-2014 BUDGET FOR ADDITIONAL PERSONNEL IN THE 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama enacted 

Resolution Number 4496 on September 9, 2013 approving the “general fund budget” 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $33,046,147 including transfers out, 

to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2013, through September 30, 2014; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act Number 2012-

196 at the 2012 Regular Session which, in substance, allows cities located in Jefferson 

County, Alabama to process the renewal of motor vehicle license plates for motor 

vehicles; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 5, 2014, the Alabama Legislature amended Act 

Number 2012-196 by the enactment of Act Number 2014-007, which, in substance, 

allows cities in Jefferson County, Alabama to issue motor vehicle registrations; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama enacted 

Resolution Number 4554 on February 24, 2014 authorizing the Mayor and City Manager 

to enter into an Agreement with Ingenuity, Inc. for registration and licensing applications 

for motor vehicles and other services; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills City Manager has concluded an additional 

permanent employee should be hired for the purpose of tag renewals, business license 

and revenue administration, and support personnel to the accounts payable 

administration; and 

 WHEREAS, the position will be classified under the Personnel Board of 

Jefferson County as Accounting Assistant I, Grade 13, Step 1-4 (steps 2 thru 4 allowable 

depending on experience); and 

 WHEREAS, due to the enactment of Act Number 2014-007 in mid-fiscal year 

this item was not included in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget ; and 



Resolution Number 4602 

Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Finance Director has detailed his recommendations for 

additional personnel in an Interoffice Memorandum to the City Manager dated May 29, 

2014, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution Number 4602 and incorporated by 

reference herein. 

WHEREAS, the City Manager feels it is in the best public interest to hire 

additional personnel to be applied to the 2013-2014 Fiscal Year’s budget in an amount of 

an annual salary not to exceed $41,500 including benefits; and 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to hire additional personnel in the 

Finance Department as described above for the purpose of tag renewals and 

reporting, business license and revenue administration, and support personnel 

to the accounts payable administration in an estimated annual salary not to 

exceed $41,500.00 including benefits; and 

2. Expenses for said personnel not to exceed an annual salary of $41,500.00 

excluding benefits shall be applied to the 2013-2014 Fiscal Year’s general 

fund budget for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4602 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 23
rd

 day of June, 

2014. 

 

 



Resolution Number 4602 

Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 4602 

Page 4 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Jeffrey Downes 

City Manager 

            
FROM: Melvin Turner, III 

  Finance Director 

 

RE:  Additional Personnel  

   

DATE: May 29, 2014 

 

As discussed this morning, I am requesting an additional permanent employee as appose 

to contracted personnel.  A permanent employee will allow for multiple and various 

assignments.  

The primary responsibilities of the additional personnel are as follows: 

 Tag renewals and reporting 

 Business license and revenue administration 

 Support personnel – accounts payable administration 

 

The State of Alabama has mandated two (2) additional audits which directly task 

finance’s personnel. The additional audits are as follows:  

 E911 

 Tag renewals  

 

 

The requested position title and compensation are listed below. 

 

Position Title:  Accounting Assistant 1 

Classification:  Grade 13 – Step 1-4 (steps 2 thru 4 allowable depending on experience) 

Compensation: listed below 

 

Base    Taxes  Fringes Total  

Step 1 - $28,371.20   $2,170.40 $5,251.51 $35,793.11 

 

Step 2 - $29,848.00  $2,283.37 $5,524.86 $37,656.23 

 

Step 3 - $31,324.80  $2,396.35 $5,798.22 $39,519.37 

 

Step 4 - $32,864.00  $2,514.10 $6,083.13 $41,461.23 

 

If you have any questions and/or concerns, please apprise.  

Your consideration, support and assistance in this matter are greatly appreciated! 

 






	Agenda
	Minutes
	Ordinance 2501
	Resolution 4601
	Resolution 4602
	Ordinance 2502



